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UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

VS.

CHW STIAN EDUARDO W LLALOBOS HERNANDEA

Defendant.

/

INDICTM ENT

The Grand Jury charges that:

GENERAL ALLEGATIO NS

At all times relevant to this lndictm ent:

Neutronik, LLC ('Weutronik'') was a Florida limited liability company formed by

the defendant CHRISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBOS HERNANDEZ in July 2015. ln its

incorporation documents, Neutronik listed several residential addresses in M iami-Dade County as

its principal place of business, including 16865 SW  95th Street and 91 10 SW  171St Court.

in November

HERNANDEZ. After M KTG 'S incorporation, HERNANDEZ was added as the registered agent

and an authorized m ember of M KTG. M KTG listed several residential address in M iam i-Dade

MKTG Specialist LLC (CtMKTG'') was a Florida limited liability company formed

2016, by the ex-wife of CH RISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALO BOS

County as its principal place of business, including 16865 SW  95th Street and 9 1 10 SW  171St Court.
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LATAMCS, LLC (ttLATAMCS'') was a Florida limited liability company fonned

in December 2016. In M ay 2017, an annual report for LATAM CS was filed with the State of

Florida listing CHRISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALO BOS HERNANDEZ as an authorized

m ember. LATAM CS listed several addresses in M iam i-Dade County as its principal place of

business, including 16865 SW  95th Street.

4. CHRISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBO S HERNANDEZ resided in Costa Rica

and traveled frequently to the United States between 2015 and the present. HERNANDEZ and

his co-conspirators established personal barlk accounts and corporate accounts for Neutronik,

M KTG, and LATAM CS at various banks in M iam i-Dade County, including Citibank, Bank of

Amerka, W ells Fargo, and Fifth Third Bank.

5. The FedEx Corporation (:tFederal Express'') was a commercial interstate carrier

and coulier service that operated within the United States and internationally.

The United Parcel Service, lnc. (%IUPS'*) was a commercial interstate canier and

courier service that operated within the United States and internationally.

MoneyGram lnternational, lnc. (ççMoneyGram'') was a company that offered

consum er-to-consum er m oney transfer services in the United States and internationally.

Consum ers could send funds and retrieve available funds at agent locations. Consum ers could

also purchase money orders that offered the convenience of a chcck without the need for a checking

account. M oneyGram had agent locations across the United States, in Costa Rica, and elsewhere.

The W estern Union Company (''W estern Union'') was a company that offered

consumer-to-consum er m oney transfer services. Consum ers could send funds and retrieve

available ftmds at agent locations. Consumers could also purchase m oney orders that offered the
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convenience of a check without the need for a checking account. W estern Union had agent

locations across the United States, in Costa Rica, and elsewhere.

CO UNT 1

Conspiracy to Com m it M ail Fraud

(18 U.S.C. j 1349)

The General Allegations section of this Indictm ent is re-alleged and incorporated

by reference as if fully set forth herein.

From in or around February 2015, through in or around August 2017, in M iami-

Dade County, in the Southern District of Flolida, and elsewhere, the defendant,

CH RISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBOS HERNANDEZ,

did willfully, that is, with the intent to further the object of the conspiracy, and knowingly,

com bine, conspire, confederate and agree with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury to

knowingly, and with intent to defraud, devise, and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to defraud

and to obtain money and property by m eans of materially false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations, and promises, knowing that the pretenses, representations, and prom ises were

false and fraudulent when m ade, and to knowingly cause to be delivered certain m ail m atter by the

United States Postal Service and by private and com mercial interstate carrier, according to the

directions therein, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341.

PIJRPOSE OF THE CONSPIM CY

lt was the purpose of the conspiracy for the defendant and his co-conspirators to

unlawfully enrich them selves by persuading victim s through false and fraudulent representations

to m ail and wire transfer large am ounts of cash and money orders to addresses in M iami, Florida,

Costa Rica, and elsewhere, and to have those sam e funds deposited in com orate and personal bank

accounts they controlled.

M ANNER AND M EANS
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The nnanner and naeans by which the defendant and his co-conspirators sought to

accomplish the purpose and object of the conspiracy included, among others, the following:

4. CH RISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBO S HERNANDEZ and his co-

conspirators incorporated several corporate entities in the State of Florida, including Neutronik,

M KTG, and LATAM CS. These entities had no actual operations or active businesses.

co-

conspirators opened bank accounts for N eutronik, M KTG, and LATAM CS at several barlks in

M iami-Dade County.

CH RISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBO S H ERNANDEZ and

HERNANDEZ and his co-conspirators also opened a number of bank

accounts in M iam i-Dade County in their own nam es.

6.

own name a United States Post Office Box (ttP.O. Box'') in (Miami, Florida. HERNANDEZ listed

him self and his co-conspirators as authorized persons to receive m ail on the application for the

P.O. Box.

CH RISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBOS HERNANDEZ m aintained in his

Unknown co-conspirators of CH RISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBOS

HERNANDEZ located in Costa Rica contacted victim s throughout the United States by

telephone, letter, and/or fax and falsely inform ed the victim s that they had won m illions of dollars

in a lottery ancl/or sweepstakes.

Unknown co-conspirators of CH RISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBO S

HERNANDEZ falsely explained to victim s, who were often elderly or retired individuals, that

the victim s needed to pay 'çtaxes'' on the lottery and/or sweepstake winnings before they could

claim their prize.

Unknown co-conspirators of CHRISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBO S

HERNANDEZ instructed victims to (a) wire transfer money directly to bank accounts in Costa

Rica in the names of companies controlled by the co-conspirators or (b) purchase money orders
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and mail them to various addresses in the United States, including to the P.O. Box registered to

HERNANDEZ.

l0. Unknown

HERNANDEZ instructed victim s to use W estern Union and M oneyGram to wire money to Costa

Rica.

co-conspirators of CH RISTIAN EDUARDO W LLALOBO S

Unknown co-conspirators of CHRISTIAN EDUA RDO VILLALOBOS

H ERNANDEZ instructed victim s to purchase m oney orders from the United States Postal

Service, W estern Union, and M oneyGram and m ail them via United States Postal Service, Federal

Express, and UPS to various addresses in the United States, including to the P.O. Box registered

to H ERNANDEZ. H ERNANDEZ'S co-conspirators instructed victim s to m ail the m oney orders

to them without tilling in the names of the payees on the m oney orders.

12. CHRISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBO S HERNANDEZ and his

conspirators deposited the victim s' cash and money orders in Neutronik's corporate bank account

and in personal bank accounts in HERNANDEZ'S nam e. H ERNANDEZ'S co-conspirators also

deposited cash and m oney orders in cop orate bank accounts they controlled, such as M KTG and

LATAM CS, and in personal bank accounts in their own nam e.

13. CHRISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBO S HERNANDEZ and his

conspirators wire transfen'ed the victims' funds from their bank accounts in the United States to

corporate and personal bank accounts in Costa Rica that the co-conspirators controlled.

The victim s never received any money from their purported lottery/sweepstake

Wllm lngs.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349.
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COUNTS 2-11

M ail Fraud

(18 U.S.C. j 1341)

The General Allegations section of this lndictm ent is re-alleged and incorporated

by reference as if fully set forth herein.

From in or around February 2015, through in or around August 2017, in M iam i-

Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,

CHW STIO  EDUARDO U LLALOBOS HERNANDEA

did knowingly and with the intent to defraud, devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to

defraud, and to obtain m oney and property by m eans of m aterially false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations, and promises, knowing that the pretenses, representations, and prom ises were

false and fraudulent whcn made, and did knowingly cause to be delivered certain mail m atter by

the United States Postal Service and by private and comm ercial interstate canier, according to the

directions therein.

PURPOSE OF THE SCHEM E AND ARTIFICE

It was the purpose of the scheme and artifice for the defendant and his accomplices

to unlawfully emich themselves by persuading victim s through false and fraudulent

representations to m ail and wire transfer large amounts of cash and money orders to addresses in

M iam i, Florida, Costa Rica, and elsewhere, and to have those sam e funds deposited in corporate

and personal bank accounts they controlled.

TH E SCH EM E AND ARTIFICE

4. Paragraphs 4 through 14 of the M anner and M eans section in Count 1 of this

lndictment are re-alleged and incom orated by reference as if fully set forth herein as a description

of the schem e and artitice.
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USE OF THE M AILS

On or about the dates enum erated below, the defendant and his accomplices, for the

purpose of executing and in furtherance of the schem e and artifice to defraud and to obtain money

and property by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises,

knowing that the pretenses, representations, and prom ises were false and fraudulent when m ade,

did knowingly cause to be delivered certain m ail m atter by the United States Postal Service and

by private and comm ercial carrier, according to the directions thereon, as more particularly

described below :

Count Approx. Date Description O f M ailing

2 Febnzary 3, 2017 A Federal Express m ail package, Tracking

number 785487085445, from victim C.M . in
M ishawaka, lndiana, to the defendant's P.O. Box

located in the Southel'n District of Florida

3 February 16, 2017 A Federal Express m ail package, tracking number
785634748040, from  victim C.K . in M cAlester,

Oklahom a, to the defendant's P.O . Box located in

the Southenz District of Florida

4 February 23, 2017 A UPS m ail package, tracking number

1z7280351394815250, from victim C.K. in

M cAlester, Oklahom a, to the defendant's P.O.

Box located in the Southel'n District of Florida

5 February 27, 2017 A Federal Express m ail package, tracking number

785743156418, from victim  C.K . in M cAlester,

Oklahom a, to the defendant's P.O . Box located in

the Southern District of Florida

6 February 27, 2017 A UPS m ail package, tracking num ber

1z1V04XQ186427213, from B.J.R. in Jasper,
Georgia, to the defendant's P.O. Box located in

the Southern District of Florida

7 M arch 6, 2017 A UPS mail package, tracking num ber

1z1V04QX13l 8952108, from B.J.R. in Jasper,
Georgia, to the defendant's P.O. Box located in

the Southern Distlict of Florida

8 M arch 9, 2017 A UPS mail package, tracking num ber

1zlV04XQl 86435613, from B.J.R. in Jasper,
Georgia, to the defendant's P.O. Box located in

the Southern District of Florida
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Count Approx. Date Description of M ailing

9 M arch 13, 20l 7 A UPS m ail package, tracking number

1z1V04Q0185710917, from B.J.R. in Jasper,
Georgia, to the defendant's P.O. Box located in

the Southem  District of Florida

10 M arch 2 1, 2017 A UPS m ail package, tracking number

lZ1V04QX01 19157300, from B.J.R. in Jasper,
Georgia, to the defendant's P.O. Box located in

the Southern District of Florida

1 1 M arch 27, 2017 A Federal Express m ail package, Tracking

number, 786042475629, from victim B.J.R. in

Jasper, Georgia, to the defendant's P.O. Box

located in the Southern District of Florida

ln violation of Title 1 8, United States Code, Sections 1341 and 2.

CO UNT 12
Conspiracy to Com m it M oney Laundering

(18 U.S.C. j 1956(h))

1. The General Allegations section of this Indictment is re-alleged and incorporated

by reference as if fully set forth herein.

From in or around February 2015, through in or around August 2017, in M iam i-

Dade County, in the Southem District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,

CH RISTIAN EDUARDO VILLALOBO S HERNANDEZ,

with the intent to further the objects of the conspiracy, and knowinglydid willfully, that is,

combine, conspire, confederate, and agree, with persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury,

to com mit certain offenses against the United States, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Sections 1956 and 1957, that is, to:

(a) knowingly transport, transmit, and transfer, and attempt to transport, transmit, and

transfer a m onetary instrum ent and funds from  a place in the United States to and through a place

outside the United States, knowing that the monetary instnlment and funds involved in the
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transportation, transm ission, and transfer, represented the proceeds of som e fol'm of unlawful

activity, and knowing that such transportation, transm ission, and transfer was designed in whole

and in pal4 to conceal and disguise the nature, the location, the source, the ownership, and the

control of the proceeds of specitied unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 1956(a)(2)(B)(i)', and

(b) knowingly engage in and attempt to engage in monetary transactions affecting

interstate and foreign com merce, by, through, and to a financial institution, in crim inally derived

property of a value greater than $10,000, such property having been derived from a specified

unlawful activity, and knowing that the property involved in the financial transactions represented

the proceeds of som e fonn of unlawful activity, in violation of Title

Section 1957.

l 8, United States Code,

lt is further alleged that the specitied unlawful activity is conspiracy to com mit mail fraud,

in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349, and m ail fraud, in violation of Title 18,

United States Code, Section l 341.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(h).

COUNTS 13-16
lnternational M oney Laundering

(18 U.S.C. j 1956(A)(2)(B)(i))

The General Allegations section of this lndictment is re-alleged and incorporated

by reference as if fully set forth herein.

On or about the dates enum erated below, CHRISTIAN EDUARDO

VILLALOBO S HERNANDEZ did knowingly transport, transm it, and transfer, and attempt to

transport, transmit, and transfer m onetary instrum ents and funds from a place in the United States

to and through a place outside the United States, as more particularly described below, knowing

9
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that the monetary instnlm ents and funds involved in the transportation, transm ission, and transfer,

and attempted transportation, transm ission, and transfer, represented the proceeds of som e form of

unlawful activity, and knowing that such transportation, transm ission, and transfer, and attempted

transportation, transmission, and transfer was designed in whole or in part to conceal the nature,

the source, the ownership, and the control of the proceeds of specitied unlawf'ul activity, as set

forth below :

Count Approx.Date of Approx. Description O f Financial Transaction

Transaction Am ount

13 June 24, 2016 $12,700 Electronic wire transfer from HE. RNANDEZ'S
Citibank account ending in 8775 located in

M iami, Florida, to X.M .H.'S Bank account in

Costa Rica

14 October 31, 2016 $ 14,750 Electronic wire transfer from Neutronik's
Citibank account ending in 9820 located in

M iami, Florida, to a Blisas Frias de la Montana

account in Costa Rica

15 November 9, 2016 $8,895 Electronic wire transfer from Neutronik's
Citibank account ending in 9820 located in

M iami, Florida, to a Am erican Realty Colm ection

account in Costa Rica

16 December 8, 2016 $16,821 Electronic wire transfer from Neutronik's Bank of
Am erica account ending in 7046 located in

M iami, Florida, to American Realty Connection
account in Costa Rica

lt is further alleged that the specified unlawful activity is conspiracy to comm it m ail fraud,

in violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Section l 349, and m ail fraud, in violation of Title 18,

United States Code, Sections 1341 and 2.

ln violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(2)(B)(i) and 2.

COUNTS 17-21

M oney Laundering

(18 U.S.C. j 1957)

The General Allegations section of this Indictm ent is re-alleged and incorporated

by reference as if fully set forth herein.
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On or about the dates enumerated below, CHRISTIAM EDUARDO

VILLALOBOS HERNANDEZ did knowingly engage in and attempt to engage in m onetary

transactions affecting interstate and foreign comm erce, by, through, and to a financial institution,

in criminally derived property of a value greater than $ 10,000, such property having been derived

from a specified unlaw ful activity, and knowing that the property involved in the financial

transactions represented the proceeds of som e fonn of unlawful activity, as m ore particularly

described in each count below;

Count Approx. Date of Approx. Description of Financial Transaction

Transaction A mount

17 June 24, 2016 $20,300 Electronic wire transfer from Neutronik's
Citibank account ending in 9820 located in

Miami, Florida, to Y.A.Q.'S Bank account in
Costa Rica.

l 8 October 3, 2016 $22,000 Electronic wire transfer from Neutronik's
Citibank account ending in 9820 located in

M iam i, Florida, to American Realty Connection
account in Costa Rica.

19 October 6, 2016 $1 1,354 Electronic wire transfer from Neutronik's
Citibank account ending in 9820 located in

M iam i, Florida, to Am edcan Realty Colm ection

account in Costa Rica.

20 December 9, 2016 $13,928 Electronic wire transfer from Neutronik's Bank
of Am elica account ending in 7046 located in

M iam i, Florida, to Am erican Realty Connection

account in Costa Rica

2 1 December 12, 2016 $ 14,250 Electronic wire transfer from Neutronik's Bank
of Am erica account ending in 7046 located in

M iam i, Florida, to Am erican Realty Connection

account in Costa Rica

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1957 and 2.
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FORFEITURE

(18 U.S.C. j 982(a)(2)(B))

The allegations of this lndictm ent are re-alleged and by this reference fully

incorporated herein for the purpose of alleging crim inal forfeiture to the United States of Am erica

of certain property in which the defendant has an interest.

Upon conviction of a violation of Title l 8, United States Code, Section 1349, as

alleged in this Indictment, the defendant shall forfeit to the United States of Am erica, pursuant to

Title 18, United States Code, Sedion 98 1(a)(1)(C), any property real or personnel, which

constitutes or is delived from  proceeds traceable to such violation.

3. Upon conviction of a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956, as

alleged in this lndictm ent, the defendant shall forfeit to the United States of America any property,

real or personal, involved in such offense, or any property traceable to such property, pursuant to

Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(l).

All pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code, Sections 98 1(a)(1)(C) and 982(a)(1) and the

procedures set forth at Title 21, United States Code, Section 853.

A TRUE BILL r-w

FORJ

( p -t-
BENJ M m  G.GREENBERG

UNITED STATES RNEY

M AURICE A. ON

A SSISTANT l D STA S ATTORNEY
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

VS.

Christian Eduardo Villalobos Hernandez,

Defendant.

/

Court Division: (select one)

X Miami Key W est
FTL W PB FTP

I do hereby certify that:

New Defendantts)
Number of New Defendants
Total number of counts

CASE NO.

CERTIFICATE OF TRIAL AU O RNEY*

Superseding Case Information:

Yes No

I have carefully considered the allegations of the indictment, the number of defendants, the numbe-r of
probable witnesses and the Iegal complexities of the Indictment/lnformation attached hereto.

I am aware that the information supplied on this statement will be relied upon by the Judges of this Court in
setting their calendars and scheduling criminal trials under the mandate of the Speedy Trial Act, Title 28 U.S.C.
Section 3161.

Interpreter: (Yes or No)
List Ianguage and/or dialect

2.

3.

4.

5.

Yes
Spanish

This case will take .i. days for the parties to try.

Please check appropriate category and type of offense Iisted below:

(Check only one) (Check only one)

I 0 to 5 days X Petty
11 6 to 10 days M inor
11 11 to 20 days M isdem.
IV 21to 60 days Felony X
V: 61 days and over

6. Has this case been previously filed in this District Court? (Yes or No) No
If yes:
Judge: Case No.
(Attach copy of dispositive order)
Has a complaint been filed in this matter? (Yes or No) No
If yes:
Magistrate Case No.
Related Miscellaneous numbers:
Defendantts) in federal custody as of
Defendantts) in state custody as of
Rule 20 from the Dlstrlct o

ls this a potential death penalty case? (Yes or No) No

Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Northern Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office prior to
October l4, 2003? Yes X No

Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Central Region of the U.S. Att ey'j Office prior to
September 1, 2007? Yes X No - --

yvz-

XM

h

A l A. HNSON ..
ASSIS NT UNITED STATES T'?Q EY
Court Identification No. A5501806-...

.*penalty Sheetls) attached --- REv4/8/o8

8.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT CO URT
SOUTH ERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: CHRISTIAN EDUA RDO VILLALOBOS HERNANDEZ

Case No:

Count #: 1

Conspiracy to Comm it M ail Fraud

Title 18. United States Code, Section 1 349

* M ax. Penalty: Twentv (20) Years' Imprisonment

Counts #: 2-l 1

M ail Fraud

Title 18. United States Code. Section 1 341

*M ax. Penaltv: Twentv (20) Years' lmprisonment as to Each Count

Count #: 12

Conspiracv to Commit M oney Laundelina

Title 18. United States Code. Section 1956(h)

*M ax. Penaltv: Twentv (20) Years' lmprisonment

Counts #: 13-1 6

lntelmational M oney Laundering

Title 18- United States Code. Section 1956(A)(21(B)(i)

*M ax. Penaltv: Twentv (20) Year's lmprisonment as to Each Count
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UNITED STTES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTH ERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam : CHRISTIAN EDUARDO VILLA LOBOS HERNANDEZ

Case No:

Counts #: 17-2 1

M oney Laundering

Title 18s United States Code, Section 1957

*M ax. Penalty: Ten (10) Year's lmprisonment as to Each Count
*Refers only to possible term of incarceration, does not include possible fines, restitution,

special assessm ents, parole term s, or forfeitures that m ay be applicable.
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